
MAYORS’ & COUNCILMEMBERS’ ASSOCIATION OF SONOMA COUNTY 
Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, Sonoma, Windsor 

 
Meeting of Thursday, April 11, 2019 

 
6:00 PM 

BOARD MEETING 
Thursday, April 11, 2019 

Hotel Petaluma 
205 Kentucky Street 

Petaluma, CA 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 
1. Call to Order – Chair Amy Harrington (City of Sonoma). 
 

2. Roll Call  
 
 
 
 

3. Approval of Minutes of January 31, 2019.  
 
4. Public Comment 
 
5. Business Items:  
 

(a) Appointments to the Following Boards / Committees: 
• ABAG Regional Planning Committee, one position, to fill expired term (Feb. 2019) of Julie Combs 

(Santa Rosa).  Term expires two years from appointment. 
Letters Received: Julie Combs – Santa Rosa 
   Susan Adams – Rohnert Park 
    

• North Bay Division, League of California Cities, Executive Board, one position, to fill term of Mark 
Milan (previously Windsor). Term expires two years from appointment. 
Letter Received:       Rachel Hundley – Sonoma 

 

(b) Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Action on CASA Compact 
• Report on Legislative Committee’s Work on CASA Compact and Letter (Chairman Hundley) 
• Report from Mayors on Actions by Individual City Taken to Date 
• Discussion by Board of Directors and Possible Action to Take a Position on CASA with Board 

Recommendation to bring to the General Membership at the June Meeting for Action 
 

(c) Report on Home Sonoma Leadership Council and Request for Board to Submit a Request to the 
Cities for Direction on Future Governance and Return this Item to the June MC Board and 
General Membership Meetings  
(Assistant City Manager Don Schwartz, representing cities without designated federal CDBG 
designation (all cities except Santa Rosa) 

 
6. Announcement(s)    

Cloverdale (Melanie Bagby)  Petaluma     (Teresa Barrett)  Sebastopol (Neysa Hinton)  

Cotati          (John Dell’Osso)  Rohnert Park (Gina Belforte)  Sonoma    (Amy Harrington)  

Healdsburg   (David Hagele)  Santa Rosa (Tom Schwedhelm)  Windsor    (Dominic Foppoli)  



 
7. Adjournment Next Board of Directors Meetings:  June 13, 2019 in the City of Rohnert Park CA. 
 
Upcoming Meetings: 
June 13, 2019   City of Rohnert Park 
August 8, 2019  City of Santa Rosa 
October 10, 2019  City of Sebastopol 
 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * *  
 

Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of business referred to 
on the agenda are available for public inspection the Thursday prior to the regularly scheduled meeting at 
Sebastopol City Hall, City Manager’s Office, 7120 Bodega Avenue, Sebastopol, CA.  Any documents subject to 
disclosure that are provided to all, or a majority of all, of the members of the Association regarding any item on 
this agenda, after the agenda has been distributed, will be made available for inspection at the Sebastopol City 
Manager’s office, 7120 Bodega Avenue, Sebastopol, CA during regular business hours.  Contact number: (707) 
823-1153.    In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate 
in this meeting, please contact the Sebastopol City Manager’s office at (707) 823-1153.  Notification 72 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the Association to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to 
this meeting. 

 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 



 

 

MAYORS’ & COUNCILMEMBERS’ ASSOCIATION OF SONOMA COUNTY 
Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, Sonoma, Windsor 

 
Meeting of Thursday, January 31, 2019 

 
6:00 PM 

BOARD MEETING 
Thursday, January 31, 2019 

Healdsburg, CA 
 

MINUTES 
 
1. Call to Order – Meeting was called to order by Chair Amy Harrington (Sonoma) at 6:50 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call – Chair Harrington called for the roll call:   
  
 Present: City of Cloverdale  Mayor Melanie Bagby 
   City of Cotati  Mayor John Del’Osso 
   City of Healdsburg Mayor David Hagele 
   City of Petaluma Mayor Teresa Barrett 
   City of Rohnert Park Mayor Gina Belforte 
   City of Santa Rosa Mayor Tom Schwedhelm 
   City of Sebastopol  Mayor Neysa Hinton  
   City of Sonoma Mayor Amy Harrington 
   Town of Windsor Vice Mayor Deborah Fudge 
 
3. Approval of Minutes of October 11, 2018  
 
Motion by City of Rohnert Park, seconded by the City of Sebastopol, to approve the October 11, 2018 Board 
Meeting Minutes as submitted. 
 
VOTE: 
Ayes:   Cities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, 

and Sonoma 
Noes:  None 
Absent: Town of Windsor  
Abstain: None 
Motion carried. 
 
4. Public Comment: There was no public comment. 
 
5. Business Items: Chair Harrington introduced the item and requested that the Board discuss the 
committees, letters of interest received, and requested that the Board act on the following appointments. 
  

(a) Appointments to the Following Boards/Committees: 
 
Board of Directors 
• ABAG Regional Planning Committee, one position, to fill expired term (Feb. 2019) of Julie Combs 
(Santa Rosa).  Term expires two years from appointment. 
Letter(s) Received: Julie Combs – Santa Rosa 
 
Public Comment: Council Member Mark Landman - Cotati  

Council Member Julie Combs – Rohnert Park 



 

 

Motion by the City of Rohnert Park, seconded by the City of Cotati, elected to extend the ABAG Regional 
Planning Committee nominations and call for letters and reconsider the appointment at the April 11, 2019 Board 
meeting, with the incumbent Julie Combs retaining her membership until a member has been appointed. 
 
VOTE: 
Ayes:   Cities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park, Sebastopol, and Sonoma  
Noes:  Cities of Petaluma, Santa Rosa, and Town of Windsor   
Absent: None  
Abstain: None 
Motion carried. 
 
• North Bay Division, League of California Cities (Alternate), one position to fill expired term (Feb. 2019) 
of John Sawyer (Santa Rosa).  Term expires two years from appointment. Note: All cities in Sonoma County 
are eligible except Cloverdale which is in the Redwood Division 
Letter(s) Received: John Sawyer – Santa Rosa 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
Motion by City of Santa Rosa, seconded by City of Cotati, to appoint John Sawyer to the North Bay Division, 
League of California Cities (Alternate) with a term ending date of February 2021. 
 
VOTE: 
Ayes:   Cities of Cotati, Healdsburg, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, Sonoma, and 

Town of Windsor 
Noes:  None 
Absent: None 
Abstain: City of Cloverdale  
Motion carried. 
 
• Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation & Open Space District Citizens Advisory Committee, two 
positions, to fill the expired terms (Feb. 2019) of David Cook (Sonoma) and Neysa Hinton (Sebastopol).  
Terms expire two years from appointment.  
Letter(s) Received: Leah Gold – Healdsburg 
   Neysa Hinton - Sebastopol 
 
Public Comment:  None 
    
Motion by the City of Petaluma, seconded by the City of Healdsburg, to appoint Leah Gold to the Sonoma 
County Agricultural Preservation & Open Space District Citizens Advisory Committee,) with a term ending 
date of February 2021 (First Position). 
 
VOTE: 
Ayes:   Cities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, 

Sonoma, and Town of Windsor 
Noes:  None 
Absent: None 
Abstain: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Motion by the City of Petaluma, seconded by the City of Healdsburg, to appoint Neysa Hinton to the Sonoma 
County Agricultural Preservation & Open Space District Citizens Advisory Committee,) with a term ending 
date of February 2021 (Second Position). 
VOTE: 



 

 

Ayes:   Cities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, 
Sonoma, and Town of Windsor 

Noes:  None 
Absent: None 
Abstain: None 
Motion carried. 
 
• SMART/SCTA member, two positions, to fill the expired terms (Feb. 2019) of Carol Russell 
(Cloverdale) and Jake Mackenzie (Rohnert Park).  Term is 4-year fixed term. 
Letter(s) Received:  Jake Mackenzie – Rohnert Park  

Kathy Miller – Petaluma  
Joe Naujokas – Healdsburg 
Melanie Bagby – Cloverdale 
Chris Rogers – Santa Rosa 

    
Discussion ensued regarding the requirement that the appointee be a member of the Sonoma County Transit 
Authority to be an appointee to the SMART Board. 
 
Public Comment:   Council Member Gus Wolter (Cloverdale), Council Member Marta Cruz (Cloverdale), 

Council Member Shaun McCaffery (Healdsburg), and Council Member Joe Naujokas 
(Healdsburg), and Council Member Jake Mackenzie (Rohnert Park) 

  
Motion by City of Healdsburg, seconded by City of Cloverdale, to appoint Chris Rogers to the SMART/SCTA 
member with a term ending date of February 2023 (First Position). 
 
VOTE: 
Ayes:   Cities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, 

Sonoma, and Town of Windsor 
Noes:  None 
Absent: None 
Abstain: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Motion by City of Healdsburg, seconded by City of Cloverdale, to appoint Joe Naujokas to the SMART/SCTA 
member with a term ending date of February 2023 (Second Position). 
 
VOTE: 
Ayes:   Cities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, 

Sonoma, and Town of Windsor 
Noes:  None 
Absent: None 
Abstain: None 
Motion carried. 
 

 (b) Recap of Item from October 11, 2018 Board Meeting (Open Space) that will be presented to 
the Mayors & Council Members General Membership (Mayor Hinton)   

 
Chair Harrington introduced the item and Mayor Hinton who spoke to the item. 

 
VOTE: 
Ayes:   Cities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, 

Sonoma, and Town of Windsor 
Noes:  None 
Absent: None 



 

 

Abstain: None 
Motion carried. 
 

c.  Rick Dishnica, Urban Land Institute, to discuss opportunities that the Mayor’s should explore and 
discuss (City of Sonoma/Santa Rosa)         

 
Chair Harrington introduced the item and Rick Dishnica, Urban Land Institute, who spoke to the item. 
 
Mayor David Hagele (Healdsburg) requested that the Councils consider directing their City Managers to meet 
with ULI as they go through the General Plan process. 
 
 d.  Request for Discussion of CASA Compact and its impact on Sonoma County (Mayor Belforte) 
 
Chair Harrington introduced the item and Mayor Gina Belforte who spoke to the item. She stated that she would 
like to know what the other cities felt about the CASA Compact and requested that it be placed on the April 
meeting agenda for consideration by the Board and General Membership. 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
Motion by City of Healdsburg, seconded by City of Rohnert Park, to add a discussion regarding the CASA 
Compact to the April 11th Agenda.  
 
VOTE: 
Ayes:   Cities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, 

Sonoma, and Town of Windsor 
Noes:   None 
Absent:  None 
Abstain:  None 
 
6. Announcement:   None 
 
7. Adjournment:    Chair Harrington adjourned the Board meeting to the Next Board of Directors 
Meetings:  April 11, 2019 in the City of Petaluma, CA. 
 
 
      Respectfully Submitted by: 
 
 
 
      Rebekah Barr 
      City of Sonoma City Clerk 
      Recording Secretary – 2019 Chair City 
 
Upcoming Meetings: 
June 13, 2019   City of Rohnert Park 
August 8, 2019  City of Santa Rosa 
October 10,2019  City of Sebastopol 



ITEM 5 a

APPOINTMENTS TO 
BOARDS/

COMMITTEES





















ITEM 5 b

DISCUSSION ON 
CASA COMPACT



Mayors’ & Councilmembers’ Association of Sonoma County 
Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, 

Santa Rosa, Sebastopol, Sonoma & Windsor 
 

 

April 1, 2019 

 

To: Sonoma County Legislative Delegation:  

 Senator Mike McGuire 

Senator Bill Dodd 

Assembly Member Cecilia Aguiar-Curry 

Assembly Member Marc Levine 

Assembly Member Jim Wood 

 

RE:  CASA:  Committee to House the Bay Area 

Notice of GENERAL OPPOSITION 

 

The Mayors’ and Councilmembers Association of Sonoma County Legislative Committee took unanimous 

action to Generally Oppose the CASA Compact.   

  

The cities in Sonoma County are united in both our concern for the growing housing crisis and our commitment 

to diversifying our housing stock and increasing the number of affordable units within our respective city 

limits to meet the changing needs of Sonoma County. We know you share our concern over rising rents, longer 

commutes, and a real estate market that has become inaccessible to our working families. Despite these common 

values, we cannot support the CASA Compact. 

We understand why a regional plan has been prepared, but we do not understand why the process to develop that 

plan failed to include outreach and meaningful feedback from the cities who will be affected. We support 

creative and bold action to address the Bay Area’s affordable housing needs, but we cannot support a plan that 

will penalize our residents because of the lack of foresight of cities and counties who were more than happy to 

welcome large employers while ignoring the question of where the new employees would live and what would 

happen to people in that community—and in surrounding communities—whose wages were not as high. 

Despite this procedural failure, we share our more specific concerns below in hope that the legislation proposed 

to move CASA forward will be fine tuned to address the underlying issues that led to this crisis without 

penalizing cities, like those of us in Sonoma County, who are actively working to increase our affordable and 

workforce housing: 

One-size-fits-all approach to housing densities and land-use decision-making: 

Sonoma County is a diverse county that encompasses urban, suburban and rural communities. As we 

have worked to improve our transportation infrastructure, including the SMART train, cities with stations 

developed and adopted MTC grant-funded Stationary Master Plans. Legislation that applies one-size-fits-

all metrics puts these plans in jeopardy and would eliminate the character of our rural and urban 

communities.   

The cities in Sonoma County have populations that range from 7,000 to 175,000, with eight out of nine 

having populations of less than 50,000. Our communities grew with our local economies but now face 

challenges in housing our working families in light of the growing number of higher income earners who 

commute to jobs outside of our county. With increasing populations comes higher costs in maintaining 



our infrastructure and providing municipal services to our residents. Consequently, it is essential to plan 

the construction and maintenance of our infrastructure to meet our changing housing needs. 

Diversion of existing revenue sources from cities: 

We oppose a new regional agency that would have the power of the purse strings to choose winners and 

losers in allocating either regionally collected funds or state funds.  We oppose any efforts to divert local 

dollars to a regional enterprise that would send taxpayer dollars outside of our county.  

Representatives of our cities have made repeated requests to MTC to share its data on the projected 

economic impact on each Bay Area city. This information has never been shared, and we are starting to 

doubt it was ever calculated. In this vacuum, we have been forced to create our own economic 

assumptions and believe Sonoma County would be sending $150 million annually to a new agency 

knowing that the return to source is uncertain, at best. 

Like many of our longtime residents, even we, as cities, have been priced out of our own real estate 

market. Raising revenue for the acquisition of property and construction of affordable housing is 

essential, and we welcome opportunities to assist in our ongoing efforts to facilitate the construction of 

affordable housing units in Sonoma County. 

The cities in Sonoma County recognize the need for increased and diverse housing opportunities for all income 

levels in our community.  We feel this acutely with the loss of over 5,000 homes during the 2017 wildfires and 

have committed to continue to address this need locally. Santa Rosa, our county seat that suffered the brunt of 

that devastation, has been a true leader in taking action to build more housing. As proposed, CASA would limit 

our ability to raise local funds, negotiate development agreements with developers to facilitate mutually 

beneficial housing projects, and to truly meet the needs of our communities.     

For these reasons, the Mayors’ and Councilmembers Association of Sonoma County Legislative Committee 

shares with you our General Opposition to CASA.  It is anticipated that full deliberation of the CASA Compact 

will occur at the Mayors and Council Members’ Association of Sonoma County membership meeting to take 

place on April 11th.  It is our recommendation that they oppose CASA.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

 

 

Rachel Hundley 

Council Member, City of Sonoma 

Chair, Mayor’s and Councilmembers’ Association of Sonoma County Legislative Committee 

 

cc: 

Chair ABAG, Sonoma County Supervisor David Rabbitt 

Chair MTC, Alameda County Supervisor Scott Haggerty 

Senate Housing Committee Chair, Senator Scott Wiener 

Chair of the Housing and Community Development Committee, Assembly Member David Chiu 

Mayors’ and Councilmembers’ Association of Sonoma County  

 

 











ITEM 5 c

ANNOUNCEMENTS








